

UMPQUA PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' BYLAWS

OVERVIEW

The seven UPTD Board Members are elected at large and vote among themselves to name a Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary. The Board's responsibility is to set policies that ensure the health of the agency. The Board meets monthly on the second Monday at 3076 NE Diamond Lake Blvd, Roseburg, Oregon, at 5:30 p.m.

Members of the public may be invited to make comments during the public forum section of the meeting. The meetings are advertised in local newspapers to announce the place and time.

The Chair runs the meeting and builds the next agenda, working with the UPTD General Manager, who is the agency's CEO. Board meeting packets are provided by mail a week prior to each meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' BYLAWS

1. General:

These Bylaws shall govern the activities of the Board of Directors of the Umpqua Public Transportation District (hereinafter known as UPTD). The Bylaws have been established under the authority of the UPTD Board and shall serve as a permanent guide for all Board functions.

2. Objectives:

The UPTD Board of Directors is committed to maintaining safe and effective public transit service to the citizens served within UPTD's jurisdictional boundaries. To that end, it shall adopt budgets, supervise UPTD's General Manager, and generally oversee the operations of UPTD.

3. Organization:

a. Membership:

The UPTD Board of Directors consists of seven (7) Members elected from and by the citizenry at large as provided by law and UPTD's formation documents.

b. Vacancies:

In the event of a vacancy on the Board, the vacancy shall be published as soon as possible for the term of one week in a newspaper of general circulation in Douglas County, Oregon. The Board will then review applications from all citizens meeting the minimum qualifications, required by law or other authority, decide whether interviews are appropriate, select and appoint one of the applicants to fill the unexpired term created by the departing member. If none of the applicants prove satisfactory to the Board, it may republish the vacancy or fill the position by appointment from the citizenry at large.

c. Conduct:

In all UPTD activities, Board members shall conduct themselves in a manner likely to benefit UPTD objectives and operations and shall refrain from behavior that disrupts Board decision-making or decorum. To maintain order at any Board meeting, the Chair may, at their discretion, exclude from the meeting a Board member whose behavior disrupts or threatens to disrupt Board decision-making or decorum. A Board member barred from attending a board meeting in person, however, must be afforded a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting by telephone or video conferencing, as long as such participation does not disrupt Board decision-making or decorum.

4. Order of Business:

- a. The Board Chair shall call the meeting to order and conduct business in accordance with the prepared agenda.
- b. The Recording Secretary or designee shall call the roll recording those present or absent and assist in the orderly completion of the agenda's business in keeping with Robert's Rules of Order.

5. Officers:

Officers of the Board shall be a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary. The Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary shall be elected from the members of the Board. The Chair shall appoint the Executive Assistant to the General Manager as the Recording Secretary for the Board. The Chair shall not serve for more than two (2) years in a row.

6. Committees:

- a. The Board may appoint representatives for subcommittees of which a Board Member shall be appointed as an ex-officio member.
- b. Subcommittees shall consist of not less than three (3) representatives who shall elect their own officers.
- c. Subcommittees shall submit written minutes, reports of findings and recommendations to the Board.
- d. Subcommittees shall be considered as either being ad hoc or standing.

7. Meetings:

- a. All meetings of the Board shall be held in conformance with the State of Oregon Public Meetings Law.
- b. At the July meeting, or if no meeting is held in July in any particular year due to lack of a quorum or otherwise, then at the first meeting of the new fiscal year, the first item of business of the Board shall be to elect new officers. The newly elected officers shall preside for a period commencing with the meeting at which they are elected and continuing until the election of the new officers for the following fiscal year.
- c. Meetings of the Board shall generally be held monthly at a date and time designated by the Board at its discretion. Interim meetings of the Board may be called by the Chair as necessary.

8. Special Meetings and Notices:

a. Special Meetings:

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chair with a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours' notice to all members and interested parties in accordance with Section 7.a. above.

b. Notices:

- i. The Secretary or designee will dispatch all notices through the United States Postal Service and/or electronic email to each member and any interested parties at least five (5) and not more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting stating the agenda thereof. Notice may be given to each Board member by telephone advising the date and time of the meeting.
- ii. Notices will be sent to any requesting party at least five (5) days prior to the meeting stating the agenda thereof.

9. Quorum (all meetings):

- a. Four (4) Board Members shall constitute a quorum.
- b. If a quorum is not present at a regularly scheduled meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by the Board Members present, to a day, time, and place certain within ten (10) days or to the next regularly scheduled meeting date.

10. Voting:

- a. Each Board Member shall have an equal vote in all Board decisions.
- b. Each Board Member present shall be entitled to one vote.
- c. Each Board Member present shall vote “yes” or “no”. Abstentions are permitted if a member has a conflict of interest under applicable law and states the nature of the conflict, if the member was absent from previous discussion of the subject, or has not had time to review that previous discussion.
- d. No member shall be required to explain the reasons for a “yes” or “no” vote during the roll call.
- e. In the event of a conflict of interest by a Board member, they must inform the rest of the Board. If it is an “actual” conflict of interest, the Board member must recuse themselves to the audience area of the meeting until a decision has been made by the rest of the Board. The Board member with the “actual” conflict of interest shall not be involved in the discussion or voting of the issue at hand.

11. Election and Tenure:

- a. Officers shall be elected at the first July meeting of the Board per Section 7.b. above and shall immediately organize for conduct of business at that meeting.
- b. If a quorum is not present at the July meeting, elections will be held at the next meeting scheduled in accordance with Section 9.b. above.
- c. Officers’ tenure begins immediately upon their election and continues for the period set forth in Section 7.b. above.
- d. If an officer is unable to complete their term, they will notify the Board in writing.

12. Minutes:

Minutes of each Board meeting will be recorded, and a copy provided to each member. The minutes will stand as read at the next meeting unless corrections are made by the Board. Except for Executive Sessions, copies of Board Meeting minutes will also be provided to any requesting party within a reasonable period of time after the meeting at which they are approved.

13. Operation:

The fiscal year shall be from the first day of July of one year to the last day of June of the following year.

14. Staff Assistance:

The General Manager shall act as executive person for the Board and provide advice and assistance as requested by the Board.

15. Amendments:

Adjustments or modifications may be made to the organizational structure of the Board or to these Bylaws by a majority vote of all the Board Members present and voting at a regularly scheduled meeting.

This document adopted this 28th day of January, 2019.

Revision yearly – revised as of this 10th day of February, 2020.